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MEMO

DATE: June 2, 2014

TO: Windham Planning Board
FROM: Amanda Lessard, Planner
Cc: Ben Smith, Planning Director

Tony Vance, R & T Enterprises, LLC.

RE: Zoning Map Amendment Request – R & T Enterprises, LLC, Tax Map 18; Lot 31C
Commercial 1 (C-1) to Medium-Density Residential (RM)

At the Town Council meeting on May 13, 2014, the Council sent the attached rezoning request to
the Planning Board for review and recommendation.

The applicant is requesting that a 4.85 acre undeveloped property on Sandbar Road, identified on
Tax Map 18; Lot 31C, be rezoned from Commercial 1 (C-1) to Medium-Density Residential
(RM).

The zoning amendment request is being made in order to accommodate residential development
of the property.  The only residential development allowed in the C-1 zone is Housing for Older
Persons, with no dwelling units on the first floor, unless a development is classified as
“affordable” under federal housing standards.  RM zoning standards allow Single Family
Detached Dwellings, Two-Family Dwellings, and Multifamily Dwellings, along with Housing
for Older Persons without the restriction on first floor dwelling units.

Given the property location away from an arterial street, and the goal of the 21st Century
Downtown Plan to make residential housing an allowed use throughout the North Windham area,
staff supports the idea of increased residential development in this area.  Staff discussed several
ways to meet this objective with the applicant, arranged here in order of likely shortest to longest
time to implement:
 Submit a zone change request from C-1 to RM.

o This is how the applicant has chosen to proceed.  The closest point of the zoning
boundary between the C-1 and RM districts on the southerly side of Tandberg Trail,
east of Collins Pond Road, over 600 feet away.  This would result in an “island” of
RM zoning in the middle of the C-1 zoning district, and is not a best zoning practice.
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 Establish a contract zone to allow residential development of this property.
o Contract zoning is an agreement between the Town Council and the property owner

which establishes restrictions or standards for a specific property which are not
applicable to other properties with similar zoning.  Per §108 of the Land Use
Ordinance, contract zoning can be enacted “for reasons such as the unusual nature or
unique location of the development proposed” and can include changes to the
“number and types of uses permitted” and “the scale and density of the development.”

o The applicant has not yet made an effort yet to demonstrate that there are unique or
unusual characteristic of this property that sets it apart from other C-1 zoning district
properties.

 Wait for the results of the Land Use Ordinance Committee (LUOC) work of making a
comprehensive review of C-1 district standards and recommending changes based on goals
of the 21st Century Plan.

Please note that the current application is for the rezoning of property only.  Any additional
dwelling units would need to obtain applicable permits.

Zoning Amendment Process
The Planning Board must hold a public hearing prior to making a recommendation on this item
to the Town Council. The Town Council will need to vote on the proposed changes to the
zoning map for the changes to be officially approved.

There are no specific standards in the Town ordinance by which to judge the proposed zoning
change, but State statute requires all proposed zoning changes and zoning map amendments to be
consistent with the goals and objectives of the Comprehensive Plan.
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